
SCRUTINY : SOCIAL 
SERVICES MEETING
3.00 pm TUESDAY, 5TH APRIL, 2016

COUNCIL CHAMBER

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 
as it will only be used for training purposes by the

Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering 
the Chamber and using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public 

are consenting to being filmed.

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 
(01685) 725203 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda 
can be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

A G E N D A

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 
Members of this Committee are reminded of their 
personal responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s 
Constitution and the Members Code of Conduct.   
In addition, Members must declare any prohibited 
party whip which the Member has been given in 
relation to the meeting as per the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure 2011.  

Note:

a. Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest; and 

b. Where Members withdraw from a meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave. 

3. Looked After Child Prevention Strategy 
See attached report (Pages 1 - 4)

4. Fostering Service - Social Services response to 
CSSIW report 
See attached report (Pages 5 - 18)

5. Looked After Children Strategy Implementation 
See attached report

6. Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 
To receive updates as required.

7. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions 
To receive any referrals from the other Scrutiny 
Committees and Audit Committee; an update from 
the Chair on their attendance at the Service 
Performance Challenge Meetings and to consider 
any follow up actions from the previous 
Meeting(s).

8. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair.



9. Forward Work Programme 
To receive updates as appropriate. (Pages 19 - 36)

10. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillor W R Smith (Chair)

Councillors: D Davies, R Braithwaite, A Jones, T Lewis, 
B E Mansbridge and J McCarthy

Co-optee(s): B Lewis

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725203

Os byddai’n well gennych gopi o’r agenda hwn mewn iaith arall, cysylltwch a 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01685 725203

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk
mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Looked After Child Prevention Strategy
1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report provides an update in relation to the progress achieved with the MTCBC 
Looked After Child Prevention Strategy, and the associated risks, issues and 
challenges. 

1.2 The strategy’s objective is to safely reduce the number of Looked After Children.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 Scrutiny Committee Members receive the report and raise questions and challenges 
that will support effective delivery and improvement in this area of work. 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 In April 2015, Cabinet accepted a proposal to implement the Looked After 
Children Prevention Strategy.  The Strategy had been developed in response 
to increasing numbers of looked after children, and the acknowledgement that 
the authority’s looked after child population had previously been amongst the 
highest in Wales.  The objective of the strategy has been to draw upon 
research evidence and local intelligence to ensure that we:

 only look after those children who need to be looked after
  that we take every safe opportunity to reunite looked after children with 

family or kinship carers
 and that those children who are looked after experience high quality 

plans for permanence at the earliest opportunity.

Date Written 23rd March 2016
Report Author Annabel Lloyd
Service Area Children’s Services
Committee Date 6th April 2016

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



3.2 Scrutiny Committee Members will be aware that the Strategy is far reaching and cuts 
across many areas of Council and partnership working.  The initial report established 
the principles with which the Council will comply in implementing the Strategy.

3.3 Scrutiny Committee last received a report in September relation to the Looked After 
Child Prevention Strategy.

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 

4.1 Whilst this report shows that there remains further work, Children’s Services can 
report that there has been some success achieved.  This is evident in the trend chart 
below which displays the numbers of looked after young people.  Children’s Services 
also reported budget efficiencies achievements in relation to this area of activity.

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 

5.1 The information above gives some indication of the downward trend in relation to our 
looked after children population.  It provides some reassurances that the changes 
underpinning the Strategy are being sustained thus far.

5.2 It is important to note that there are some children for whom becoming looked after is 
the only route to achieving safety and stability, and that the LAC prevention strategy 
does not diminish the Council’s central safeguarding duty.  

5.3 During quarter three 11 children became looked after with one child becoming 
looked after twice and 22 children’s looked after episode ended.

5.4 The work set out in the last Scrutiny Report in relation to outcome focused care 
plans and monitoring cases has continued.  This work has led us to anticipate a 
slight plateau in our progress when we look at anticipated need across the profile of 
cases known to us.  In recent weeks we have encountered two family special 
guardianship arrangements that have broken down.  We have also experienced 
challenge in terms of being unable to place all children who have become looked 

Page 2



after recently with Merthyr Tydfil foster carers.  This has led to 3 new placements 
being made with independent providers.

5.5 Our performance in relation to permanence planning at Quarter 3 was reported at 94 
% which is a slight dip from the prior two quarters when we reported 100%.  The dip 
was linked to one case alone and we have since offered advice and support to 
practitioner to enable them to progress the permanence plan for the young person. 

5.6 We now have a Principal Officer in post for Permanence who will further the work in 
relation to tracking and improving permanence. 

5.7 We are preparing for providing an Information Advice and Assistance service whilst 
implementing improvements at the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub, all of which will 
enhance our potential to provide the right support at the right time to prevent 
escalation of family difficulties. 

5.8 Activity during this past phase has generated a focus on developing the multi-agency 
Cwm Taf Looked After Child Prevention Strategy.  This document is due for 
conclusion following public and young person consultation during April and will be 
shared with Cabinet. The document itself maximises our potential to continue the 
success achieved through the strategy being embedded as a priority for partners.  
The work will be monitored by the regional Social Services and Well-being  
Partnership Board.

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

6.1 When we embarked on this project last year we set the target of reducing the Looked 
After population to 138 by 31.3.18.  Given that we are close to achieving this, we will 
now set a more ambitious target in the context of the developments outlined below.

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 

7.1 The next steps for the Strategy are to re-define and extend our ambition for the 
achievements of the Strategy whilst ensuring that we continue to look after those 
children for whom there is no safe alternative.  This work will involve establishing a 
method of investment in our extended child in need service.  This service has shown 
good results in preventing children from becoming looked after but capacity restricts 
the number of cases that the team can deal with.  We also need to assess and 
approve more Merthyr Tydfil foster carers, particularly for older young people who 
can present carers with challenges. 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO CORPORATE PRIORITIES

8.1 The content of this report has strategic congruence with the Children’s Services 
Strategy in the following ways:

 Desired Outcome 1: Year on year more children live at home with their family or 
friends;

 Desired Outcome 3:  There is a reducing number of children who need to 
become looked after;

 Desired Outcome 6: All young people we work with have: timely assessment and 
outcome focussed care and support plans;Page 3



 Aim 2: Improve Performance;
 Aim 5:  Promote Early Intervention and Prevention;
 Cwm Taf Looked After Child Prevention Strategy Outcomes; 

1. More children and young people are supported to live with their families, 
safely.

2. More Parents and carers are supported to help their children live with their 
families safely.

3. The wellbeing and opportunities of looked after young people is improved.
4. People who need our support experience a seamless service that will help 

them achieve the things that matter to their wellbeing.

LISA CURTIS-JONES, 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES)

COUNCILLOR LINDA MATTHEWS 
CABINET MEMBER FOR SOCIAL 

SERVICES

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location
List the Background 

documents which have 
been relied on in 

preparing the report. 
E.g. previous minutes of 

relevant committees

April 2015 Cabinet 
Report LAC prevention 

Strategy

September 2015 
Scrutiny Report LAC 
prevention Strategy

October 2015 Cabinet – 
LAC prevention Strategy

January 2016 Cabinet 
Report – Corporate 

Parenting Board

Unit 5

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No 

Page 4



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Fostering Service - Social Services response to 
CSSIW report 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 The Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW) completed their annual 
inspection of Merthyr’s fostering service in February 2016. This report highlights the 
key points arising from the inspection, the response of Merthyr Tydfil Social Services 
and the inspection action plan for 2016/17. 

.
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The Scrutiny committee considers the report and raises questions and challenges 
that will improve practice and outcomes.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council’s fostering service is regulated by the Care 
and Social Services Inspectorate Wales and subject to an annual inspection.  The 
inspection for 2015/16 was a focused inspection and took place primarily over two 
days on the 22nd and 24th February 2016.  

3.2 In its Annual Review of Merthyr Tydfil Fostering Services for 2015-16 the CSSIW 
identified areas of good practice, evidence of improvements made since the last 
inspection and areas for improvement. This report provides an update as a basis for 
scrutiny committee members to raise queries and challenge. 

Date Written 23rd March 2016
Report Author Sarah Skuse
Service Area Children’s Services
Committee Date 5th April 2016

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



4.0 WHERE WE WERE 

4.1 The fostering inspection of 2014/15 was generally positive and the focus of the 
action plan in 2015/16 was to build on these areas of good practice and respond to 
the legislative changes as a result of the Social Services & Well-Being (Wales) Act 
2014. 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 

5.1 The inspection identified the following areas of improvement following the last 
inspection:
 Fostering social worker had further developed their systems for consulting with 

children and monitoring their progress.
 Opportunities had increased for consultation and engagement between the foster 

carers and the local authority.
 Foster carer handbook was updated.
 New information guides had been produced for children and young people.
 An information guide had been produced for young people remaining with their 

carers after the age of 18 and improvements made to the support available to 
them.

 Improved arrangements had been made for out of hours support for carers.
 Improved arrangements had been implemented to the arrangements for the 

scrutiny of foster carers’ review.
 Preparation work had been undertaken in preparation for new legislation.

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

6.1 For those children placed with Merthyr foster carers we want to ensure that the care 
they receive maximises their potential and enables them to grow and develop to be 
independent and healthy adults who can make a positive contribution to their 
community. 

6.2 In order to achieve this outcome foster carers and professionals working with the 
child will need to work together and provide care and support that will assist the child 
to meet their Well-being outcomes. 

6.3 Specifically the fostering service will be required to recruit, assess and support foster 
carers to provide high quality care that meets the needs of looked after children.   

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT

7.1 There were no compliance notices issued at this inspection, the report does however 
make recommendations to support the ongoing improvement of the fostering service 
these are identified in the table below with associated actions that will assist in 
making these improvement in coming months. 

Page 6



Recommendation Actions
That the information in the 
children’s and young people’s 
information guides clarify the 
nature of support agencies might 
be able to provide

The information guides were developed by 
young people with experience of being looked 
after. Consultation will take place with them to 
discuss this recommendation and consider 
improving the leaflets. This may also provide an 
opportunity to promote DEWIS Cymru – an 
online resource for searching resources 
available in Wales.

These adjustments will be undertaken in 
preparation for the next print run of leaflets.

That foster placement agreements 
include more specific objectives to 
be attained on behalf of the 
children in their placements 

The format of foster placement agreements to 
be reviewed with the fostering team and a 
group of foster carers to consider improvements 
to the format that would ensure a focus on the 
individual well-being outcomes for children and 
the foster carer’s role in enabling attainment of 
the outcomes. 

That education reports are 
available that are specific to the 
children placed with carers 

Currently there is a range of information 
collated by our LACES team about the 
educational outcomes and attainment of looked 
after children. This information is periodically 
reported to Corporate parenting board – in the 
future this will include good news stories of 
achievements to celebrate e.g. sport. In 
addition all school age children have Personal 
Education Plans clearly outlining educational 
aspirations.

This information need to be incorporated into 
the supervision of foster carers and a much 
clearer focus given to the supervision of foster 
carers that highlights their contribution to, not 
only the education achievements of children but 
towards the individual outcomes for children in 
their care. 

7.2 There are no financial implications to this report

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO CORPORATE PRIORITIES

8.1 The content of this report has strategic congruence with the Children’s Service 
Strategy in the following ways:

 Desired Outcome 1: Children are safe and protected from neglect and abuse.

Page 7



 Desired Outcome 4: Commissioned services meet need and are high 
performing.

 Desired Outcome 5: Children’s Services practice is compliant with the Social 
Services and Well-Being (Wales) Act.

 Desired Outcome 6: All young people we work with have: timely assessment 
and outcome focussed care and support plans.

 Aim 2: Improve Performance.

 Aim 3: Improve partnership working.

 Aim 5:  Promote Early Intervention and Prevention.

 Cwm Taf Looked After Child Prevention Strategy Outcome 3: The wellbeing 
and opportunities of children and young people who become looked after are 
improved.

 Cwm Taf Looked After Child Prevention Strategy Outcome 4: People who 
need our support experience a seamless service that will help them achieve 
the things that matter to their well-being. 

LISA CURTIS-JONES
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

COUNCILLOR LINDA MATTHEWS 
CABINET MEMBER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

CSSIW Annual fostering 
inspection of Merthyr 
Tydfil Social Services 

for 2015-16

March 2016 Unit 5 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Page 8



 

 

 

 Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales 

 
 
 

Care Standards Act 2000 

 

Inspection Report 
 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council Fostering Service 
 

Merthyr Tydfil 
 

 
Type of Inspection – Focused 

Date(s) of inspection – Monday, 22 February and Wednesday, 24 February 2016 
Date of publication – Thursday, 17 March 2016  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Welsh Government © Crown copyright 2016. 
You may use and re-use the information featured in this publication (not including logos) free of charge 
in any format or medium, under the terms of the Open Government License. You can view the Open 
Government License, on the National Archives website or you can write to the Information Policy 
Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU, or email: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk  
You must reproduce our material accurately and not use it in a misleading context. 
 

Page 9

mailto:psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk


 

Page 2 
 

Summary 

About the service 

Angela Allen is the person appointed by Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council to manage 
its fostering service. Its offices are in Pentrebach, Merthyr Tydfil.     
 
At the time of the inspection, there were approximately 88 children placed with 68 fostering 
households approved by the service. This included; 
 

 25 children in kinship placements and 

 63 children in mainstream placements  
 
The process for inspecting the authority’s arrangements for private fostering is separate to 
this inspection process.   

What type of inspection was carried out?

This routine focussed inspection was undertaken between 10am and 6.30 pm on 22nd 
February and 12.15 pm and 3pm on 24th February 2016. Both visits were announced and 
the following methodology was employed; 
 

 we viewed a sample of relevant documents and records and   

 held discussions with the staff and managers of the service and separate 
discussions with groups of mainstream and kinship carers.   

What does the service do well? 

The service has developed a group of experienced foster carers and staff and the 
necessary expertise and systems to understand and provide for the support needs of the 
children. Enthusiasm was expressed by the carers, staff and managers for the ongoing 
improvement of the fostering service.   

What has improved since the last inspection? 

These are some of the improvements since the last inspection; 

 the fostering social workers had further developed their systems for consulting with 
children and monitoring their progress  

 opportunities had increased for consultation and engagement between the foster 
carers and the local authority 

 the foster carers’ handbook had been updated  

 new information guides had been produced for children and young people   

 an information guide had been produced for young people remaining with their 
carers after the age of 18 and improvements made to the support available to them 

 improved arrangements had been made for out of hours support for carers 

 improved arrangements had been implemented to the arrangements for the scrutiny 
of foster carers’ reviews 

 preparation work had been undertaken in preparation for new legislation  

What needs to be done to improve the service?  

 
The following recommendations are made to support the ongoing improvement of the 
service; 
 

Page 10



 

Page 3 
 

 that the information in the children’s and young people’s information guides clarify 
the nature of support agencies might be able to provide as well their contact details 

 that foster placement agreements include more specific objectives to be attained on 
behalf of the children in their placements 

 that education reports are available that are specific to the children placed with 
carers approved by the fostering service. 
 

 
 

Page 11



 

Page 4 
 

  

Quality Of Life 

Overall, we (the CSSIW) found that the arrangements in the fostering service and in the 
authority to promote and support the quality of life of the children were good. The 
systems for planning how children’s needs would be met were well established and that 
their access to support services was also good.  The systems for monitoring, reviewing 
and improving the quality of care provided by the fostering service were established and 
the carers, staff and managers demonstrated commitment to the ongoing improvement of 
all the service.  
 
A range of information guides were available for younger and older children and for 
young people remaining with their carers after the age of 18. These were seen to focus 
on the rights of the children and children who had been ‘looked after’ themselves, had 
been involved in their production. Whilst these guides included the contact details of 
services children might contact for support; we recommend that the nature of the support 
each service might be able to offer should also be included.    
 
Mainstream carers had produced ‘foster carer profiles’ to give information to children 
about their homes, their lifestyles and their families. Carers emphasised the importance 
of giving children information about their placements as well as making them feel 
welcome when they came to live with them. Carers had received training in ‘life journey’ 
work to assist children in understanding their life experiences and provided ‘life journey 
boxes’ to gather information, certificates of achievement and photographs for the children 
of memorable experiences for when they left their placements. They also set up savings 
accounts for the children.  
 
Carers and fostering social workers said that the matching of children with carers had 
been good and that placement meetings were generally held within two days of children 
being placed to confirm they were suitably placed and that their care needs were known. 
They said that care plans and foster placement agreements were discussed at these 
meetings to clarify the objectives to be attained during placements and that the fostering 
social workers made written records to reaffirm placement objectives.  
 
The placement agreements we checked showed the type of placements children were in; 
i.e. for ‘respite’, preparation for adoption or long term but did not include specific 
objectives against which the effectiveness of children’s placements could be assessed. 
The manager said they intended to ensure that specific placement objectives were 
included in future placement agreements and for these to be linked to the children’s and 
foster carers’ review processes.  
 
Records of visits made by the fostering social workers demonstrated a focus on the 
wellbeing of the children and the records of carers’ reviews showed that children had 
been consulted as well as their social workers. Managers said that carers’ reviews would 
not be concluded unless feedback had been obtained. The feedback we saw indicated 
that children had been provided good quality care and had made good progress.   
The manager had collated this information on a service wide basis to inform the annual 
quality of care review.  
 

Page 12



 

Page 5 
 

 
End of placement reports were also completed and the manager said they intended to 
widen consultation for future foster carer reviews and to include children’s parents, where 
appropriate.  
 
An education support plan was in place which included the objectives and arrangements 
for promoting the education of the children looked after by the authority. Feedback from 
carers, staff and managers indicated that the education support available was well 
coordinated and effective. They provided various examples of how children and carers 
had been supported which included extra tuition, equipment and to obtain school 
placements if children had needed to move schools. Systems were in place to monitor 
children’s progress and a report had been produced to demonstrate compliance with 
recommendations made by the Children’s Social Care and Research and Development 
Centre at Cardiff University, in conjunction with Voices from Care Cymru. Whilst current 
reports included were in relation to all children looked after by the authority the manager 
said they intended to create education information that was specific to the children 
placed with carers approved by the fostering service.   
 
A system had been established to monitor, review and improve the quality of care 
provided by the fostering service. A draft report included the findings of consultation with 
children and others about the quality of care provided by the service. The manager said 
that this review process was subject to ongoing development and that they had plans to 
include information in future reports about children’s education; involvement in social and 
leisure activities and any plans for the improvement of the service. We recommend that 
these reports include more detailed information about the progress and outcomes of 
children to demonstrate compliance with the objectives of their care plans and foster 
placement agreements. In addition to care plans and foster placement agreements, there 
was a range of risk assessments in regard to known or likely risks associated with caring 
for the children.  
 
The manager said that the fostering social workers were gathering information during 
their visits to carers about the welfare and progress of the children. They said they were 
well placed to consult with the children and that their views about their care were an 
essential part of their ongoing assessment of the carers’ ability to meet their needs.   
  
Feedback from carers, staff and managers indicated that the authority had access to a 
good range of services to provide therapeutic support for the children; for instance to 
support them in relation to attachment difficulties or difficult previous experiences. They 
said that carers, fostering social workers and the children’s social workers worked well 
together to ensure children had access to the support they needed.  
 
The authority had promoted a range of opportunities for young people to receive 
continuing accommodation and support after the age of 18. Managers said that 7 young 
people were continuing to live with their previous foster carers and the arrangements 
made to support their placements reflected good practice.   
 

 

Page 13



 

Page 6 
 

 

Quality Of Staffing 

 
The focus of this inspection was on the quality of life and the quality of the care of the 
children. The quality of the staffing of the service was not considered in detail. 
 
The manager described the fostering team as being an experienced and stable team and 
said that any staff vacancies that had arisen had been filled appropriately. They said that 
there had been no delays in undertaking assessments, reviews or in making support 
visits to the carers. They said that some foster carer assessments had been undertaken 
by independent social workers to support the capacity of the staff team.  
 
Feedback from staff indicated that staffing levels had been adequate to fulfil their roles.  
Some staff indicated that they felt ambitious and sought opportunities to be more 
involved in the ongoing evaluation and improvement of the service.  
 
Feedback from the mainstream and kinship foster carers about the staff supporting them 
was unanimously positive. Some carers that had moved from independent fostering 
agencies said that their support had improved considerably since transferring to this 
service.  
 

 

Page 14



 

Page 7 
 

 

Quality Of Leadership and Management 

 
The focus of this inspection was on the quality of life and the quality of the care of the 
children. The quality of the leadership and management of the service was not 
considered in detail. 
 
Feedback and evidence indicated that the manager had been effective in bringing about 
a range of improvements in the fostering service since their appointment in 2013 and that 
they were committed to its ongoing improvement.  
 
  
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 

Page 9 
 

 

Quality Of The Carers 

 
We held separate discussions with a group of 12 foster carers providing mainstream 
placements and 3 providing kinship care.   
 

Overall, feedback from mainstream and kinship carers indicated that they had received 
very good support and training from the fostering service and that they were committed 
to the children they cared for. Improved arrangements had been made to provide support 
to foster carers during out of office hours which they said they appreciated. They said 
that their support and training had equipped them to positively meet the needs of the 
children they cared for. 
 
They confirmed that their training and development was reviewed as part of their annual 
review and that feedback from children and their social workers was always sought  
about the quality of care they were provided.  
 
The manager said that all carer visits had been undertaken, including at least one 
unannounced visit per year. They said that all foster carers’ reviews had been 
undertaken other than a very small number which had been delayed for reasons beyond 
their control.  To improve the scrutiny of the work of the foster carers, a senior worker 
within the team chaired all of their reviews and the reports of their reviews were referred 
to the fostering panel on a three yearly cycle. This reflected good practice. 
 
Managers said they had improved arrangements for communication and engagement 
with their carers and to consult with them about their support needs and about any 
improvements they felt could be made. They said this had included opportunities for 
carers to meet with senior managers in the authority and that support groups took place 
monthly for carers in the Merthyr area and bi monthly for carers in the west Wales area. 
News letters were sent to all carers twice annually and the foster carer handbook had 
been updated.  
 
Feedback from foster carers about their training was very positive and managers said 
that they had future plans to provide ‘Confidence in Care’ training, over a twelve week 
period support their development.  
 
Carers, staff and managers said they were proud of what some of the children had 
achieved. The examples they gave included two children that were committed to skiing 
and could be chosen to ski at the next Olympic games; a young woman who had 
remained with their carers until they married and moved in with their partner. They said 
that the young woman maintains contact with their ex carer and that they perceive and 
refer to them as family. We saw several examples of feedback from children who said 
they saw their carers as their parents and that they loved them for what they meant to 
them.  

Page 16



 

Page 10 
 

 
 

How we inspect and report on services  

We conduct two types of inspection; baseline and focused. Both consider the experience of 
people using services. 
 

 Baseline inspections assess whether the registration of a service is justified and 
whether the conditions of registration are appropriate. For most services, we carry out 
these inspections every three years. Exceptions are registered child minders, out of 
school care, sessional care, crèches and open access provision, which are every four 
years.  

 
At these inspections we check whether the service has a clear, effective Statement of 
Purpose and whether the service delivers on the commitments set out in its Statement 
of Purpose. In assessing whether registration is justified inspectors check that the 
service can demonstrate a history of compliance with regulations.  

 

 Focused inspections consider the experience of people using services and we will look 

at compliance with regulations when poor outcomes for people using services are 
identified. We carry out these inspections in between baseline inspections. Focused 
inspections will always consider the quality of life of people using services and may look 
at other areas.  

 
Baseline and focused inspections may be scheduled or carried out in response to concerns. 
 
Inspectors use a variety of methods to gather information during inspections. These may 
include; 
 

 Talking with people who use services and their representatives 

 Talking to staff and the manager 

 Looking at documentation 

 Observation of staff interactions with people and of the environment 

 Comments made within questionnaires returned from people who use services, staff and 
health and social care professionals 

 
We inspect and report our findings under ‘Quality Themes’. Those relevant to each type of 
service are referred to within our inspection reports.  

Further information about what we do can be found in our leaflet ‘Improving Care and 
Social Services in Wales’. You can download this from our website, Improving Care and 
Social Services in Wales  or ask us to send you a copy by telephoning your local CSSIW 
regional office. 

Page 17

http://wales.gov.uk/cssiwsubsite/newcssiw/publications/leaflets/puttingpeople/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/cssiwsubsite/newcssiw/publications/leaflets/puttingpeople/?lang=en


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance for the next scrutiny committee meeting.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The Committee considers its work programme and approve, revise or amend it as 
deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions above in planning for the next 
meeting.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND
3.1 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda. 

3.2 At each meeting the committee will agree the agenda items for their next meeting 
and in preparation may in advance wish to ask itself the following questions.

Q) Why has the item been placed on a scrutiny work programme?
a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan 

and priorities?
b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns?
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest?
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications?

Date Written 23rd March 2016
Report Author Scrutiny Section
Service Area Legal & Governance Services
Committee Division Scrutiny 
Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt
Committee Date 5th April 2016

Page 19

Agenda Item 9



e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 
difference and achieve tangible outcomes?

f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 
resources?

Q) What is the specific role of the committee?
           This will depend on the item – for example the role could be:

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department

b. to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose
c. to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue 
d. to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation / review
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue

Q) What outcome is the committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item?

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council 

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes.
c. To receive an overview presentation.
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work. 

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the corporate plan / other plan / other strategy.

g. Improvement in service delivery

Q) What information does the committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome? 
What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions.

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information?
Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police,  Health Board etc

Q) Does the committee need to ask for written representations?
The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting. 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend?
Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 

Page 20



community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc.

3.3 Committees members will be aware that the Council has seven key priorities as per 
the Corporate Plan. These are:- 1) Raising Standards of Attainment; 2) 
Employability;  3) Economic Development;  4) Promoting Active Lifestyles;  5) 
Promoting Independence; 6) Meeting the Needs of Vulnerable Children and 7)  A 
Sustainable Environment.

The seven Council priority areas are delivered through 4 themes, and each of the 4 
Chief Officers has ownership and responsibility for one of these themes. The 4 
themes are:-

 Raising Standards - (Chief Officer for Learning/ Cabinet member for 
Learning) 
Learning & LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee

 Improving Wellbeing - (Chief Officer for Social Services / Cabinet member 
for Social Services)
Social Services Scrutiny Committee

 Economic Growth - (Chief Officer for Community Regeneration / Cabinet 
member for Regeneration, Planning and Countryside)
Regeneration, Planning & Countryside Scrutiny Committee

 Sustainable Development - (Chief Officer for Neighbourhood Services / 
Cabinet member for Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection)
Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee

3.4 To reflect the 4 themes as per above in a convenient form, 4 “strategies on a page” 
have been developed and each reflects Measures of Success; Desired Outcomes 
and Strategic Aims and Objectives.

3.5 Much of Scrutiny committee work programme activity is aligned to the delivery of the 
Council’s corporate priorities and the “strategies of a page” can assist scrutiny 
committees in this role. See appendix I for the “strategies of a page”.

3.6 A copy of the Committees work programme is also attached.

Scrutiny Section
MTCBC

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? No

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Measures of Success

Raising Standards

Desired Outcomes

Strategic Aims 

All learners attain at least
the expected standard at all

stages in their education

Vision:

AIM 1: Improve the quality of
leadership including the leadership
of learning and teaching

AIM 2: Improve LA and
commissioned services

Leadership in all schools
is good or better

All members of the
education community

collaborate well in order
to improve the standards
and wellbeing of pupils

Teaching in all schools
is good or better

LA provision improves 
standards of attainment 

and the quality of
leadership and teaching 

in schools

P
age 23



Specific Measurable Outcomes - Measures of Success

Improving Wellbeing

Desired Outcomes

Strategic Aims & Objectives:

Social Services:
- Children
- Adults
- Safeguarding

We will help people in
Merthyr Tydfil to maximise their
potential, be free from poverty,

be independent and healthy
and to live in supportive and

resilient communities.
People in Merthyr Tydfil 

will be able to lead 
independent and 

fulfilled lives.
Vulnerable children in 

Merthyr Tydfil live 
healthy, safe and fulfilled 

lives.

People in Merthyr Tydfil 
are physically active and 

as a result have 
improved health.

Vision:

P
age 24



Economic	  Growth	  Plan	  
	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  Vision	  	  	  	  

Priority	  Area	  	   The	  Business	  Base	  	   Baseline	  
	  (year)	   Target	  	   	  	   Priority	  Area	  	   The	  Labour	  Market	  	   Baseline	  

(year)	   Target	  	   	  	   Priority	  Area	  	   Skills	  	   Baseline	  
(year)	   Target	  	  

Key	  Indicator	  	   Count	  of	  birth	  of	  new	  
enterprises	  	   225	  (2013)	   300	   	  	   Key	  Indicator	  	   Economic	  Ac@vity,	  

Unitary	  Authori@es	  in	  
Wales	  	  

27833	  (2011)	   30000	   	  	   Key	  Indicator	  	   Level	  2	  Skills	  	   6682	   7000	  

Indicator	  	   VAT	  /	  PAYE	  Registered	  
Enterprise	  Births	  	   225	  (2013)	   300	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Average	  Gross	  Weekly	  

Earnings	  	   £477.60	  
(2014)	   £500	   	  	   Indicator	   Working	  Age	  PopulaLon	  

with	  level	  2	  qualificaLons	  
(2011)	  	  	  

6682	   7000	  

Indicator	  	   VAT	  /	  PAYE	  Registered	  
Enterprise	  Deaths	  	   135	  (2013)	   100	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Claimant	  Count	  Levels	  	   1,100	  (Mar	  2015)	   900	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Working	  Age	  PopulaLon	  

with	  no	  qualificaLons	  
(2011)	  

9963	   9000	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Gross	  Disposal	  
Household	  Income	  Per	  
Head	  	  	  

£13,500	   £14000	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	   Unemployment	  Levels	  
16	  +	  	   2000	   1600	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Economic	  InacLvity	  
Levels	  16-‐64	  year	  olds	   7,900	   7,300	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

 

AIM 1: Develop a diverse 
and vibrant business 

base 

	  	  

AIM 2: Create a flexible, 
resilient and responsive 

labour market 	  

 
 

AIM 3:  Increase the 
quality and skills within 
the existing and future 

workforce necessary for 
effective business growth  

	  	  

 
 

AIM 4: Improve and create 
the right infrastructure to 

enable and accelerate 
business growth   

	  	  

Measurable	  Outcomes	  	  

Desired	  Outcomes	  	  

P
age 25



A Sustainable Environment

Vision
People in Merthyr Tydfil 
will live in communities 
that are sustainable, clean 
and energy efficient. 

Waste Management
Energy Management
Environmental Quality  - Cleaning / Fly Tipping / Litter
           - Air Quality
           - Noise

Flood Management
Planning & Countryside
Wildlife & Biodiversity
Parks & Open SpacesSpecific Measurable Outcomes - ‘Scores on Doors’

  - Measure of Success

Strategic Aims & Objectives -

Desired Outcomes -

Creation of more
‘Greener’ jobs

P
age 26



Social Services Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015/16
(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

 (Work programme Version November 2015)

16 June 
2015

8th July 2015
SPECIAL

28 July 
2015

8 Sept 
2015

20 October 
2015

1 December 
2015

Corporate 
Items

Budget & Transformation 
Projects 2014/15
(LCJ, MA, AL)

Communities First 
(SH)

Safeguarding 
(AL)

Looked After 
Children 
Strategy 
Implementation 
(AL & Port. 
Member)

CSSIW Annual 
Performance 
Evaluation for 
2014-2015
(CSSIW)

Policy 
Review & 
Developmen
t

Looked After 
Children Strategy 
Implementation
(AL)

MTCBC 
Safeguarding 
Review 
(Rotherham) (NK) - 
This item will take 
1 hour plus

ACRF Annual 
Report on Social 
Services (LCJ, AL, 
MA, BC)

Older People 
Strategy 
(MA)

Monitoring 
Reports /  
Briefing 
Reports 

Social Services & 
Wellbeing Act
(LCJ, AL, MA)

CSSIW site visit - 
February 2015

Budget Outturn 
2014/15 (LCJ, EC, 
GC, LB)

JOINT MEETING

(All Scrutiny 
Committees)

De-registration of 
Park View and 
Glynderw (MA)

Looked After Children 
Strategy Implementation 
(AL & Port. Member)

De-registration 
of Park View 
and Glynderw 
(MA)

Regional 
Adoption 
Collaborative
(AL)

P
age 27



Social Services Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015/16
(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

 (Work programme Version November 2015)

12 January 
2016

27th Jan. 2016 
SPECIAL

23 Feb 
2016

5 April 
2016

17 May 
2016

Corporate 
Items

Cwmtaf 
Safeguarding Adult 
Board Annual 
Report

Cwmtaf 
Safeguarding 
Childrens Board 
Annual Report

CSSIW Report 
Action Plan Update
(LCJ / AL / MA)

Looked After Children 
Strategy Implementation 
(AL & Port. Member)

CSSIW Report Action Plan 
Update
(LCJ / AL / MA)

Policy 
Review & 
Developmen
t

Disabled Facility 
Grants (DFG’s)
Audit / COT’s team

Monitoring 
Reports /  
Briefing 
Reports 

Cwm Taf Youth 
Offending Service
(Jason O’Brien, Head of 
Cwm Taf Youth 
Offending Services at 
RCTCBC/ Annabel Lloyd)

Fostering Inspection 
report (AL)

Performance 
Monitoring

Transformation;  
Budget Proposals 
2016/17
(LCJ, EC, GC, LB)

JOINT MEETING
All Scrutiny 
Committees)

P
age 28



Social Services Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015/16
(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

 (Work programme Version November 2015)

Dates to be confirmed for following items

Reviews For Looked 
After Children & 
Children On The Child 
Protection Register

AL Children 
Services

Monitoring & Scrutiny : An annual report providing details of numbers of LAC and CPR 
and the impact of the review processes

Merthyr Tydfil Family 
Centre

AL Family Service Scrutiny & Challenge : A report on Children in Need and the Merthyr Tydfil Family 
Centre (was Thomas Town House).

Social Services & 
Wellbeing Act – Key 
Themes

LCJ, AL, 
MA

Information & Scrutiny : An outline of the significant key themes with the associated 
risks, issues, challenges and desired outcomes

Multiple Intervention 
Assistance (MIA)

SH Prevention & 
Early 
Intervention

Scrutiny & Challenge : An annual report which details

Adult Day Services 
Reconfiguration

MA Prevention & 
Early 
Intervention

Pre- Scrutiny : Adult Day Services are transferring from Social Regeneration to Social 
Services and will be reconfigured over the next 6 months. This report will detail the 
proposed approach to better support the prevention and early intervention agenda

The Impact Of 
Prevention & Early 
Intervention 
Programmes On Social 
Services

LCJ, SH Prevention & 
Early 
Intervention

Scrutiny & Challenge : A report which details how PEI programmes are helping to 
reduce the pressure on social services in terms of referrals, re-referrals and 
acute/chronic individual and family issues 

Corporate Strategic 
Direction Plan

GC/BT/P
W 

Corporate item

Strategic Direction (LCJ, EC, 
GC, LB)

Corporate item

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Social Services
Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015/16

Meeting Date Subject Invitees Theme Scrutiny Focus
Looked After 
Children Strategy 
Implementation

AL & Children 
Services

Monitoring, Scrutiny & Challenge : A quarterly update on progress 
implementing the LAC strategy and the associated risks, issues and 
challenges. The strategy is seeking a reduction in the number of LAC and 
CPR over the next few years

16th June 2015
Social Services & 
Wellbeing Act

LCJ, AL, 
MA, BC

Strategic 
Issues

Awareness Raising : A presentation detailing the key elements of the 
Social Services & Wellbeing Act to include an outline of the regional 
implementation plan with its 17 themes and MTCBC’s lead on 3 of these

8th July 2015 (Joint) Budget Outturn 
2014/15

LCJ, EC, 
GC, LB

Joint 
Scrutiny

Scrutiny & Challenge : A report detailing the outturn for the 2014/15 
budget and the implications for the 4 year medium term financial plan

Annual Report LCJ, AL, 
MA, BC

Social 
Services

Information & Scrutiny : The Director of Social Services annual statutory 
report to Welsh Government

De-registration of 
Park View and 
Glynderw

MA Adult 
Services

Monitoring & Scrutiny : 6 monthly updates on progress and impact from 
de-registering Park View and Glynderw and associated risks, issues, 
challenges and outcomes.28th July 2015

MTCBC 
Safeguarding 
Review 
(Rotherham)

Nicola 
Kingham

Social 
Services

Information & Scrutiny : Self-Assessment with Scrutiny

Looked After 
Children Strategy 
Implementation

AL & Port. 
Member

Children 
Services

Monitoring, Scrutiny & Challenge : A quarterly update on progress 
implementing the LAC strategy and the associated risks, issues and 
challenges. The strategy is seeking a reduction in the number of LAC and 
CPR over the next few years

8th September 2015
Budget & 
Transformation 
Projects 2014/15

LCJ, MA, 
AL

Budgets Scrutiny & Challenge : An update on progress towards meeting budget 
transformation requirements set for 2014/15

P
age 31



Outcome 
Agreement report

EMcW Scrutiny & Challenge : Summary of Performance3 against the Outcome 
Agreement with the Welsh Government (Information Report) (Annual 
Performance Report moved to 20th October (EMcW) and Outcome report to be submitted instead 
(Advised 24/8)

Older People 
Strategy

MA Adult 
Services

Monitoring, Scrutiny & Challenge: An update on progress implementing 
the Older People strategy and the associated risks, issues and challenges. 
The strategy is seeking to improve joint commissioning and use of the 
Intermediate Care Fund.

Communities First Ian 
Benbow / 
R. Stokes

Prevention 
& Early 
Intervention

Scrutiny & Challenge: A report(s) on progress towards achieving 
improvements in outcomes in the 3 programmes across MTCBC. Each 
cluster to update.20th October 2015 

Safeguarding Annabelle 
Lloyd

Social 
Services

Scrutiny & Challenge: Safeguarding Children Board report. “…both Council 
officers and elected members acknowledged that the quality of 
safeguarding performance challenge at Scrutiny needs to be improved “ 
(Source – WAO- Annual Improvement report and Corporate Assessment 
June 2015)

Looked After 
Children Strategy 
Implementation

AL & Port. 
Member

Children 
Services

Monitoring, Scrutiny & Challenge : A quarterly update on progress 
implementing the LAC strategy and the associated risks, issues and 
challenges. The strategy is seeking a reduction in the number of LAC and 
CPR over the next few years

De-registration of 
Park View and 
Glynderw

MA Adult 
Services

Monitoring & Scrutiny : 6 monthly updates on progress and impact from 
de-registering Park View and Glynderw and associated risks, issues, 
challenges and outcomes.

Budget & 
Transformation 
Projects 2014/15

LCJ, MA, 
AL

Budgets Scrutiny & Challenge : At the September meeting  there was an update on 
progress towards meeting budget transformation requirements set for 
2014/15. A further report is required, with more detail on those projects 
that are amber or red.

1st December 2015

Annual 
Performance 
Evaluation for 
2014-2015

CSSIW Social 
Services

Monitoring & Scrutiny: The CSSIW will be publishing the evaluation report 
on 30 October 2015 and wish to present it to this scrutiny committee 
before 31 December 2015 (email LCJ 10th July )

P
age 32



Regional Adoption 
Collaborative

Annabelle 
Lloyd

Children 
Services

Monitoring & Scrutiny: An update  and some early performance 
information  in relation to our regional adoption collaborative

Cwmtaf 
Safeguarding Adult 
Board Annual 
Report

Nicola 
Kingham

Cllr LM Scrutiny & Challenge :  This is the Annual report 2014/15, which will have 
been to Cabinet in December 2015. 

Cwmtaf 
Safeguarding 
Childrens Board 
Annual Report

Nicola 
Kingham 

Cllr LM Scrutiny & Challenge :  This is the Annual report 2014/15, which will have 
been to Cabinet in December 2015.12th January 2016 

Cwm Taf Youth 
Offending Service

Jason O’Brien, Head of 
Cwm Taf Youth Offending 
Services at RCTCBC/ 
Annabel Lloyd

Scrutiny & Challenge :   An update on the continued development of Cwm 
Taf Youth Offending Service with a focus on the performance of the service 
and potential risks to future service delivery based financial challenges.

14th January 2016 (Joint) 
now 27th January

Budget Proposals 
2015/16

LCJ, EC, 
GC, LB

Joint 
Scrutiny

Scrutiny & Challenge : A report detailing the budget proposals for 2015/16 
and the implications for the 4 year medium term financial plan

Disabled Facility 
Grants (DFG’s)

Audit / 
COT’s 
Team

Performance Scrutiny & Challenge: At a Regeneration Scrutiny Committee meeting in 
November there was a presentation on DFG’s. There were two follow up 
points 1) DFG’s dealt with by 2 dept. i.e. COT Team making the assessment 
of need before involving the Housing Grants Team. To look at reasons for 
any delays in progressing DFG’s between the 2 dept.’s 2) Clarification when 
DFG’s were Audited.23rd February 2016

CSSIW Report 
Action Plan Update

AL / LCJ / 
MA

Performance Scrutiny & Challenge. At the 1st December meeting CSSIW reported to 
committee on their report. An action plan was needed to address the 
recommendations in the report. This will be the first update, then every six 
months thereafter.

5th April 2016 Looked After 
Children Strategy 
Implementation

AL & Port. 
Member

Children 
Services

Monitoring, Scrutiny & Challenge: A quarterly update on progress 
implementing the LAC strategy and the associated risks, issues and 
challenges. The strategy is seeking a reduction in the number of LAC and 
CPR over the next few years

P
age 33



Fostering 
Inspection Report

AL & Port. 
Member

Children 
Services

Scrutiny & Challenge. To provide the committee with a copy of the latest 
Fostering Inspection report

17th May 2016
CSSIW Report 
Action Plan Update

AL / LCJ / 
MA

Performance Scrutiny & Challenge. At the 1st December meeting CSSIW reported to 
committee on their report. An action plan was needed to address the 
recommendations in the report. This will be the first update, then every six 
months thereafter.

To be confirmed

Reviews For 
Looked After 
Children & 
Children On The 
Child Protection 
Register

AL Children 
Services

Monitoring & Scrutiny : An annual report providing details of numbers of 
LAC and CPR and the impact of the review processes

To be confirmed 
Merthyr Tydfil 
Family Centre

AL Family 
Service

Scrutiny & Challenge: A report on Children in Need and the Merthyr Tydfil 
Family Centre (was Thomas Town House).

To be confirmed (several 
meetings)

Social Services & 
Wellbeing Act – 
Key Themes

LCJ, AL, 
MA

Information & Scrutiny : An outline of the significant key themes with the 
associated risks, issues, challenges and desired outcomes

To be confirmed

Multiple 
Intervention 
Assistance (MIA)

SH Prevention 
& Early 
Intervention

Scrutiny & Challenge : An annual report which details

To be confirmed

Adult Day Services 
Reconfiguration

MA Prevention 
& Early 
Intervention

Pre- Scrutiny : Adult Day Services are transferring from Social 
Regeneration to Social Services and will be reconfigured over the next 6 
months. This report will detail the proposed approach to better support 
the prevention and early intervention agenda

To be confirmed

The Impact Of 
Prevention & Early 
Intervention 
Programmes On 
Social Services

LCJ, SH Prevention 
& Early 
Intervention

Scrutiny & Challenge : A report which details how PEI programmes are 
helping to reduce the pressure on social services in terms of referrals, re-
referrals and acute/chronic individual and family issues 

P
age 34



To be confirmed

Corporate 
Strategic Direction 
Plan

GC/BT/P
W

Joint 
Scrutiny

Scrutiny & Challenge: A report on developing and delivering the corporate 
strategic direction plan identifying progress towards achieving targets and 
desired outcomes, risks and issues.  

To be confirmed

Disabled Facility 
Grants (DFG’s)

Audit / 
COT’s 
Team

Performance Scrutiny & Challenge: At a Regeneration Scrutiny Committee meeting in 
November there was a presentation on DFG’s. There were two follow up 
points 1) DFG’s dealt with by 2 dept. i.e. COT Team making the assessment 
of need before involving the Housing Grants Team. To look at reasons for 
any delays in progressing DFG’s between the 2 dept.’s 2) Clarification when 
DFG’s were Audited.

This item is here as committee agreed to review / have an update 
following the 23rd February 2016 meeting. This relates to the delay issue 
not the Auditing issue.

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Looked After Child Prevention Strategy
	4 Fostering Service - Social Services response to CSSIW report
	Merthyr CBC fostering CSSIW-SIN00002634--Inspection - Report

	9 Forward Work Programme
	strategies on a page
	Social Services Work Programme 201516
	Social Services Descriptors


